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the Ceuncil in the prescnce of the Zmparor could not be eltered, which
caused a heedlongz collision between TQJO and Premier KONOYE es well as
Foreign Minister TOYCDi. ind so the resignation of the Cgbinet en bloc

was said to be probable, I also learned that Naval Minister OIKAUWA had
expressed his desire to leave all the metters in the hapnds of the Premiery
I lost no time in getting in touch with the Genersl Staff Office and made’
a query os follows: the lJjaval Minister's proposal of leaving the matters
all in the hand of the Premier might be interprcted as the Navul'MiniEtry'ﬁ
avasion of opening hostilities, having eltered +he Septenber {y deci8ione
Thether tho army should slso heve to elicr 1ts attitude, considering the
Navy's main part to be played in the war against Amcrice, the enswar glven
by the Genergl Staff Office Was that it would not change jts attiitude, 88
the Navnl Staff Oifice was not inclined to chanse the September {, decisien
eny worc than evers. '

4t this, I muessed that the issuce was the divergence of opinion between
the Govermient and the Suprame Commsnd, end if 50, the question would
remain 85 ever unscihtlac, ceven if the YONOYE Cabinet should resign en
bloc. So lons o3 the question lies therec, it could not be scttled, no
maiter “ow often the tgbinet should be che »ed. Premier KONOYE should
ascu1s the rasponsibility of solvinz the problem by himself wuthor than
resigning. "o this 2nd, it was 1acassary for the Navel Miniater to dis-
close hig real intontione. Thus, lar liinister TCJIO0 wowld bz ehlz to obtain
the understonding ol the Generel g+aff office., These Worc iy chrurai 8 at
thet lwoments Then I called on Chief Cabinet Sacratary ToY=.s 2n tha
aftaernoon of the 1Lih of the seme month ansl teld him mv 1200 B8 stated
above, for hulf an hour, desiring his tactiu) hendling of thae melitele Dut
ths sthbapt Lo et the Neval Ministry to cxoress their wi3n agernst wWar
provcd unsuccessiul after all., This was immediately reported to &r
Minister TOJQ. .

Lceordinz to the testimony of Lt Gonorcl TANAKA4, Shinichi, the operations
plan -hich the General Steff maps out can not be Aetermined withont the
consent of the War Minister. It might be 80 interpreiad, vub raglly it 18
not sce 4S & mattar of lact, the operavions plan is the moLw inportant
duty of the Geacrsl Shtelf, anc the Wex "linister can not incerfore with the
plan itselfs Only il is a questicn "hatisr O not the Wer Minister can
provide the parsénnel, materiusls and nor - necessary for making the plan
practicale If the War Ministicx can not gnarsntee tha excoution of their
requost, tho Gengral Stefi makos now plend 50 Iar 43 the Wnr Ministor can
give his essurance. The operations plan 1S, naturally, apt 3o bs an
ideslistic onc, so that it is quite usual that the personnol gnd materials
it requires should be so big that the Wer Ilinister can not gxecute the
originel plane.

General TANAKA, Shinichi, also tostifiocd that the VWar Minister, Var Vice
Minister and Directors of Bursaus signed tho order which the Chief of tho
General Staff issued to the front line units to be prepared for Wvars The
Chief of the General Staff has the authority to give order to front-1line
units to be prepared for war, but from the viewpoint of diplomacy and

supply of material, it is necessary to inform that fact to the War Ministrye
Tn order to speed up the procedure, therefore, it was the rule to send

up a draft of telegram to the Tar Ministry to obtain signatures of the
officers concerned. General TANAKA testified to this fact. But whether

the signature end seal eof the Military Affairs Bureau chief is on it has

no decisive mesning, as TAIIAIGA's testimony showSe

The Conference of Directors of Bureaus is a meeting in the War Ministry,

in which each Directer reports to the minister and Viee Minister the
present state of business in his charge end makes it Known to the others,
thus to smooth the liaison of business. In order to zet the Minister's
sanction on some matters, it was the zeneral rule that g Director of Burecau
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should, at first, obtain approvel of the Vice Minister and then present
them to the Minister for his sanction. But thers were some cases vhere
the Minister orally passed decision on some matters et tho aforesaid
Conferencey &nd in sueh cases il was the rule to submit dosuments after-
wards f or formal sanction,

negotiations at the Confercnces Tlowever, at the Conferenee I only reportad
what had been determined in the Liaisoh Conference or in the Conference '
in the Imperial prosonce, and never have I stat®d my own opinion. It was
testified by TANAIA, Ryuwcichi, that at the Directors' Conference about
November 29, 1941, T hed axpressed my opinion about the interruption of
the Us Se=Japan negotiations after tho receipt of the Hull note on 26
November. I deny it absclutely, :

TANAKA testified thet the control of newspapers was ong of tha functions
of the Information Section of the Bureau of lMlilitary Affairs, but this is
not correct. The Information Sectimn belonzed to tha Imperial Headquarters,
end the Buresu of Military Affeirs merely took charge of editing thg |
"Tsuwamono", a weady for the Army, and the Suparvision of compiling
cccasional pamphlets, The information Seetion come into being after the
Imperial Headquarters was 2s5tablished in Docember, 1937; and it was amade
to belon: to the Headquarters, and so it was not under the Chief of tha
Burcau of Militery Affairs. In the Ministry of War, howevor, thu Burnau
0f Intellizence was s t1ill laft, though reduceds 4s the building of the
Imparial Meadquarters, the Genoral Staff Office, was small, the above-
mentioned Informstion Section of the Imperial Headguarters was locatcd

in the building of the Iinistry of War, together with the Burcau of
Intollijsencas of' tha Ministry of War. Perhsps this mislead TANAKA to tho
aforeszid stetemant, ioreover, soon efter the secand KONOE Cabinct_was
organized, all the censorship and control of tha= newspapers and megezincs
relatinz to the drmyy of which the Bureau of Intelligence of tha Ijinistry
of War had bean taking charge, cams to he administered in the Burcau of
Intelligence of the Cabinets.. Announcement of the situetions of wer fraom
tine to time and the Propaganda tovwards the enemy were the functions of’
the Information Sgetion of tha Imperial Heedquarters,

48 I stated above, thce Chiaf 0f thz Informstion Section of the Imparial
dzadquarters was not at all controlled as such by the Chief of the Suraau
of Ililitary Af'fairs, but as to cditing the "tsuwamono®, above-montioncd
military weakly, and compilation of tha pamphlets, ¢ xplaining the currcnt -
topics for the usz of militery cducation, ha was under the Chief of the
Burcau of Military ATTeirs, as the Chiof of the Burcau of Intellizoence of
tho Ministry.of War, : '

TANITH , Ryukichi, former Chiof of thc lMilitary Service Burcau, testified
taat vhen I sat with him at a luncheon or & banquet, I talked with him
about internationsl problcmse But at. sueh a meetinzg I was never inclincd
to take up a serious problem and discuss it. I never talked seriously
With him on any occasion about such problems; much less did I say that
Jepan, under the conclusion of the Tripartite Alliance, must establish a
new order in East 4Asia in concert with tho attempt of Germeny and Itely
to build up a new order in Europee In this connection, TalWXA himsclf
admitted in this Court that he had not hoard anything sbout: it from me.

He however testified that in the Military iffeirs Burceau therc had existed
8 consistent view or policy favoringz thz Tripartite Alliance since the

4BE Cabinet, and that he was awarc of it by taking a side-view as Chief of
the Burcau or the Section of Militsry Servica, (But T.IL.K: could not show
on what grounds he came to such g conclusions) I uatirely deny his
stetement. It was in the middle of October, 1939, that is, at the time of
the 4BE Cabinet, that I took office as Chief of the Militery Affaeirs Burcau,
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What I then learned was that at the time of the HIRANULL Cabinet, before
the «8E5 Cabinet, the . _my hoped for the conclusion of the Tripartite
«wllience betwecn Jepan, Germeny and Italy and mede an effort to materialize
V) it, but it resulted in failure owinz to the non-ag:iression pact concluded
\tbf between Germeny ‘end the Soviot Union. Jepan's feeling at that time wes

* that she had been deceived by Germany and that such upsterts gs Hitler and
‘q;o Mussolini could not be trusteds I am one of th&sc who thought so0s =
A Iy opinion regerding Germany and Italy wes that the national strength of

those statos wes not as stron: as was propagated; - (thet Hitler was but a
first-grade private in tha First World War and Mussolini was then a sergeent);
that whetever a bold gtiempt they mizht make, and aeven if they should feil
in it, they could be satisfisd with ity, as it could maks theuw heroes of

the age, whils such was not applicabls to the Jepanese stctesmen; and that

if once they failed, they would spoil the glory of a national polity having

a history of three thousend yeers; and that for this reason, it was dangerous
for Jepan to conclude an ellisance with Hitler end Mussolini. ifhenever I
talked with advocates for concluding the Tripartite 4Llliance, I told thanm

the gbove-mentionad opinion of mine. Once, when I told it to a German
aviation officer, Colonsl Groner, he nodded with a simile, for he w7as not a
momber of' the Nezi Party.

September 1339 war broke out betwsen Britoin and Germenys. In the latter
part of' May of thz next year, Germany won the victory of Dunkirk by so-
c¢alled lightning operations. 4t theo time it was zenerally believed among
the Jepanese that Germany would get the final victory. agein preveilsd the
edvocacy amon; such people for concluding the Tripartite Alliance. BRBut I
pradicted thet the war between Britmin and Germeny would prove to be a
protracted one, so I doubted that Germany would get the final victory.
There were meny ressons for it Speeking first of Germany, thz following
rzasons could be mentioned: that the Germen eir force was not as sufficisnt
a5 wes propagetad; that Germany hed not nreparations enouzh to cross tho
Strait; thet her naval force was inferior to that of Great Britain. 4i& for
Britein, thare were the following factors: Britain's naval strenzth -ms
overwinslminzly superior to that of xermany; according to reports of Lt.
Goneral TaTSULI, thz British people held a rether calm attitude; Praomier
CHURCT frankly adnitted Britain's "Defeai at Dunkirk®; the United States
would give her positive help to Britain, Swmmin; up these points, the
conclusion I came to was that the advence of the German forces would come
to a stop on the coastline, and while they remained there, Britein would
I'ing time snough to make a rally; in the lonz run, Hitler would come to
fail in conguerin: Britain, just s llepoleon had failed. On this point,

I Trequently talked #it: Colonel LiiKTRO, Chief of the Wer Affairs Scction,
He, I think, is well awarc of this tell of mines

20, TALXK4L, Ryulkkichi, testified thet the resignation en bloc of the YONLI Cabinct
EES duc to the fact that L4, hdinister of far, offéred s proposal regarding
Fihe conclusian. the Tripertite illience (which TAMiK4 said was supported
}; C% %‘r }Fn & ip 8 4L en H1
-1“hfl%ﬁa?§ g&ujlgét it did not coms to a unanimous agreement, so that IIAT
resigned. It was, however, guite wronge. Th Was no request duydng HATA's

4
A)‘\\‘E hegure of office that the governrient conclude the Tripartife 4llignce. Th
&

YONAT Cabinet adepted a pelicy not %o intervene in ths Ruropean War, and
HATA, Minister of War, also supported it. Then, why did HATA tendor his
resignation which ceused the YONAI Cabinst to resign en bloc? That was due
to the following circumstance: 4t that time, the General Staff was so eazer
for setiling the China J4ffair as scon as possible thet it offered a pro-
posal to have Germany intervene between us, and further urged the War
Minister to solidify the netional structurc in order to cope with any
possible situstion in world events. To those demends of tha General Staff,
the YONAI Cabinet did not return any earncst response. ince KONOE, who
at that tinme resigned his position as President of the frivy Council,
started a new party movoment with a view to improving internal affairs.
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The enhanced YON4I Cabinet became all the more unpopulaer with the public.
Just at that time, for about ten dys between the latter part of June 1940
and the boginning of July of that year, T was away from tha War Ministry,
beceuse I served on a recepifion committee for the Manchukuo Emperors Then
T ceme back to the Minisiry, when I saw of ficial correspondence sent o the
Tar Minister from the Chief of the General Staff, to the effect that a
proper step should be taken to tide over the emergencye. It was an ex=
pression of a very strong intention that such a form was used in deallng
with those mattiers,

1T, Minister Bf War, was very anxious t'o solve thc mattdmdsd -mentioned

above, but it did not go as expected, and he Was placed in a delicats .
position between the General Staff Office emnd the Government, end at last |
was oblized to resigne 4&s fer as I mew, his resignation was not- at all
due to disagreement regarding the conclusien of the Tripartite J.llianca./*”'

Interviews with foreign military attaches wes one of tho duties of the
Military Affairs Burcaue Henoce, I frequently received & call f ram thene

As for the telk thet is indieated in Exhibit Noe 523, it is, I Suppose,

what I telked about when I reeeived e call from the Germen military

attache'; beceuse I never celled foreign militery atteches myself to coma

to the Ministry. When I see the date rezerdinz the matter in the exhibit,
it proves to be the letler pert of Mareh 1940, Thet was just the time

when there was an opinion that Japan should ask Germany to intervens in
sattling the China Affair. So T assume that the talk must heve referred

to that matter, sounding the Germen attitudes The words "Japan has intaral'
in Frensh Indo~China problems" probably, I em convineasd, concerned the |
fact that at that tims both Governments of Jepan and France had come to &
mutual understending regerding s ban on transportation of materials te

the Chungking Regime and That the Inspeetion Corps started for Freneh Indo=
China under Major General NISHIIlaR4, This wes nolt my personal opiniode

but a description of what was then really going Ohe

it the time when TOJO entered tha I{ONOE.Gabinet gs Minister of iar, thea

Army had the following opinions gbout diplomacys The main object of
diplomacy should be the setiling of the China affair; as for the ether
diplematic problems, elastic constructive diplomacy shauld be earried on
=ith a view to attesining thet objeets That was a3 Was ghown in the pelit 1ol
prozramme of the KONOZ Cabinet. Tharefors, the diplomatic. policy Was not

5o limited es to require a conclusien of the Tripertite alliense. Then,

why was the Tripartite 4llienead so rapidly concluded in Saptember, shortly
after the KONOE Cabinet had been fermed in July®? It was entirely due %o

the faet that Foreign liinister MUTSUOKL toeik such an active part, MATSUALgg
Foreign Minister, vith a groat confidence in his sapacity of diplemacy s
carried out & drastic reform of his Ministry and pushed himself forward on
his belief, without giving cer to any othor person's opinion. It was also
due to his sole sctivity that the Tripartito Allience was 50 r epidly con-
cludede I had no knowledge of theo gsignificence of the pact until I haeard

the Chief of the Treaty Burcau explain tha text of the Tripartite Pact atl

the Inquiry Commission ef tho Privy Councile In this Court I first loerne$
thet T had been suzzested for en order by German psmbassader OPT to the
cerman Government for the reason thet 1 andeavored for goed reletions betved
Japan end Germeny. The date of the telegram froa ,smbassador OTT regarding
the desoration was the middle of May 1942 after 1 resizned my position as
Chief of the Military Affairs Bureaue According to jinternational usagass
this kind of affair was prectiscd by 8 mutual exchange ef proposalsSe Ther
fsre, Germany, I believe, was informed of my neme by the War Ministry far
the reagsn thet I had been &t that time Chief of the Militery Affairs
Burcsu. But ss I mentioned above, I have nover Sech the decoration phat

may have been grented to Mmcs
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From October 1939 to April 1942 I held the position of Chief of the
Military Affairs Bureau. For sbout one year and eight months of that
period (from July 1940 to April 1942), I was under TOJO, Minister of Ware.
In rasponse to the inguiry of the Prosecution, I was interpreted as if I
answercd to the effect that the War liinister came to my office to ask ny
opinions This is a big misinterpretation. A minister never came to a
dircctor's orfice.

I could express my opinion to Ceneral TOJO in his capacity as War hIiniatari
but I was not allowed to do thai to Generel TOJO in his cupacity as Prime '
Ministere He drow a cleer line botween the function of the Prime Minister
and that of the Minister of War; therefore, as far as the function of the
Prime Minister was concerned, he did not adopt any opinion of the staff of
the War Ministry.

It ‘scems to have been contended by the Prosecution that in case of dis-
sgreeing with the Ministor of War, I could resign my position (in reply to
the Defense's motion to dismiss)s It wos, however, prohibited for the
Japanese military to resign or leave the service for the roason of their
disagreeing with their superiors.

Only in case of illness, were they permitted to do so. TANAKA, Ryuwichi,
testified in this Court that he knew sancene who hed resigned his position
as Chief of the Military Affairs Burcau for such a reasonas is mentioncd
above. I wonder wham on earth he menticned by seying so. I 8lso know ‘
that thérc wes an instance in which someonc did not follow the order of tha
Yar Minister, and the Army authorities trensferred him with a disciplinary
object. It wes, however, the worst instance. As a netter of military
diseipline, it was not %o ba oxcused. A5 Tor trensfer, thile T served as
Chief of the IAliteryv Af'feirs Burasu, soon after TOJO took ofilce as
Ministor of War, T frequontly asked the Chief of the Personnel Burceu fo
trensfer me. In the letter part of October 1941, efter the TOJO Cebinet
wes formed, I exprossed my desire for transfer at a meoting sttended 2y Ui
iinister of War, Vice Minister of War and the Chief of the Porsonncl sursau.
But overy time it was not sdoptede.

TANAKG, Hyukichi, sooke of me @s ¢ statesman. Bui it was & sarcasm
peculisr to hims He once rebuced e, saying that I was too bu'ms-liica.
Ly personal history shows clearly thet I had never made a stvudy of

politics and diplomecy end hed no sxperionce in thosc effeirs until I took
off'ice as Chief of che [Hlitary affeirs Bureau, But after heving the
position, I mada, as & metier oi duby, a study of politicel and diplomatic
problems whieh camz upe Iy vieTs '7ors sometimes adopted by the Minister
end sometim=s note TuliaKd testifiod that General TOJO had scarcely any
sense of politics end diplomacy ond no experience in thosa affairs, so ha
pdopted my opinion about tlicm. This was his dogmatic opinion, coatrary to
the fact, TANUU once served in Chine and held the position of Chief of
th: Military Intellizence Organ thore, but he overestimated his gxperienca |
and regards himself as if he had a sunse and,experience about politics !
and diplomacye I felt guite disyusted to hear his speaking from such &
viewpoint of General TOJO before some civilians. He wes quite wrong in his
criticism of Generel TOJO, Ncedless to say, General T0JO, beinz a militery
men, had no political cxporicncc. But he was such a hard worker that he
studied anythinz conterningz politics and formed his opinion about ite He
was not in the loest a person vho would blindly obey such an opinion as
mines This cen be easily secen from the foact thet for more than two years
after I was transferred he steerzd through difficult political situations
as Prime llinister. '

/ o ,
It wes at the busiest time after the outbreak of the Pacific 'fer thet I
was transferred.
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25« TdNALKA, Ryukichi slso testified that TOJO opposed himself to the
political intervention of militery men, especially of the Military Affairs
Bursau. TulldKA added that the politicael intervention of military men was
prohibited by the Jepuonese Constitutione First of all, he was wrong in
his statement that it was prescribed in the Constitutione The Constitution |
contains no such provision. Speakinz of legal basis for it, thoy are as
follows: Military men in active service have no franchise nor eligibility
Tor election; Military Criminel Law restricts the freedom of political
Speach and association of militery men in eactive service; the Imperiel
Rescript sranted by tho Emperor leiji to military end naval men in 1882
edmonishes that military mon should perform their duties without intor-
vening in politicse (The last Impoerial Rescript was what the Emperor Mei )i
granted to militery end naval men in order to admonish them because thosc
7ho participated in tho lMeiji Restoration was agitated owing to e political
trends) Military men shiould, as is mentioned above, not intervene in
politiess Iowever, the “Tar Minister can and must teke part in politicse
It is beceuse the Wer Minister has the power to attend the Cabinet Gonferenca
a8 a Minister of Gtote, and is actually thus a statesman. However, ths
War IMinistor must carry out the metters decided upon by the Cabinet
Conference. For this purpose, it is necessary to have a politicel affair
machinery. The Military Affairs Bursau is the very machinery which doals
7ith these peliticel effairs. The functicn of the Militery Affaeirs Burcau
consists in caerrying on such politicel affairs end not in politics itsclf.
If the bureau was not allowed to carry on such political affairs, the War
[finistoer as politician would prove to bo functionless. For this rzason,
the organizetion of tha War Ministry indicates clearly that limison business
with the Diet is .one of ths dutiea of the Military ALffhirs Soction of the
INlitagy iffeirs Burecau.

On this point, I was never protested to by TLNiKa, Chief of the Military
Serviec Buresus ificreas, I wes quite surprised to hear his malcing a sclf-
righteous statement in this Court about military men's intervention in
politics. Contrery to his testimony, I remember that he made so meny
Spocencs end actions rogarding politiecs, which did not belonyg to his
dutics as Chief of the Militery Service Bureau, that I advised hin to
abstain from doinz thems. Hea wes not only my farmer subordinate, but zlsn &
friend of mine, so I guve him advise (without dolibornte consideratien)
but it was invain. Soou after ihet, g rumor prevailed ameng the public
thet MUTO end TANWKL had had a quarral, 3o that I was grastly ennoyode It
18 truc that about 1941 I objescisd to his sttending the Diet in session os
a Government Commissionsre That was duc to the followinz raasson:. In the
Yar Ministry, explenations end replias in the Diet were prepared before-
hend and approved by the War Ilinicster vhet there might not be any in-
' consistency or misunderstanding in rhplios Yo interpellations. That was
the same in every ministry. But Tdidl would have a bold utterance of
his om accords This mijht have mwsed the members of the Diet end made
the newspapers lively, but it wes the Hlitary Affeirs Burcau that was
annoyed by facinz & protost spainst it from other ministrics and the
General Staff,.
26. On December 8y 1941, when the Pacific ar broke out, TOJO, Minister of ‘7ar,
delivered en address to all tha staff of tho War IMinistry. Just before
- TOJO's delivering the address, TalLdl., Chief of the Military Servicc Burcau,
come up to me and said "With this war, TOJO has becomo a heroe? ®If Japan
should be defeated," I retorted, "Jepan's national polity would be changede
Consequently, far from being called 'hero', TOJO might be blemed for 'high
trcason'." However, I remember I deeply regretted thet I had told him that
the national polity misht be changed if Japan was defeated, In Gthis
connection, I remember also that on that day or the followingz day,
TOMINAG4, Chief of Personnel Bureeu, told me, "#hat a men TalN.ik is, to tell
me that TOJO will becomz a herol I accused TG, of his imprudence in
Such a serious affair of our State as if it were a personal problem of
T0J0's." But he testified in this Court that I myself had said so. Whercas,

-1 G
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according to TNAKA's testimony in the Court, the utiterances of TLINLKA

and myself

were controrivise steteds I cennot understend his mot ivae

Furthormore, Tuildii, Ryukichi tostified that sbout the Gth of Decomber,

1941, when

T telked wvith the chiefs of sther burceus at & luncheon about

the progress of negotiations boteen Jepan and Jmerica, T said that the
visit of smbessador IURUSU to Jmerica &nd the sending of the TLTSUT4. IWRU

had been a

sort of camouflagze before the swiare. There is no reason I have

ssid such a thinze I absolutely did not Say thate 48 for the visit of

ambassador

KURUSU to Lmnorics, T elso heerd it had been suggested as & step

sincerely talen for Japen-;merican nesotviations by Foreign Ministor TOGO
at the request of /mbassador 1i0MLTL. and had been decided upon after his
consul tation with T0JO, Prime llinistor, &8s was testif ied in this Tribunele
Regerding the sending ol tuz PSUT.. MLRU, however, it had no connection

with the War liinister and I ihew

Since the wer broke out, there preveilud mysterious stories or rumors

considered
ambassedor

true emonz the zeneral publice I believe the matters regerding
KURUSU and the TuTSUL. 16RU might have becn among thems I am

surc T4l testified, connecting, of hig own osccord, metters regerding
myself with those rumorass

The Prosecution's deposition of Exhibit No. 2240 indicetes thal I ans.rerzd

thet I hed

modo & draft of the Imperiel Reseripl regarding the Declaration

of Wor tozether with HOSHINO, Chiof Szcr ury, end OK4, Chief of tha
Military Affoirs Burzou of the Nevy. Thet was o niztokoe The fuct was

thet I end

OKii only offored reference materials for tha Rescript o

1IOSHINO, Chief Socretery. Such en Imperial Rescript wos, a3 Q@ principls,
to be prapered in tha Cabinet. The Cabinet mede & draft of iT.

In the Jepenese Govarnment, the goneral control of war prisoners ‘as undsr

tho charge of the Yar llinister.

guch ss, frec trensportotion by reil, frae mail service end froc axcha:yze
servica, werc undor the charze of the respective Ministors concerncds IV
did not macn, however, that war prisoners cama under thz control of iha
Winistar of Wer ca soon &5 they were delivered to tha Japantso AT e A
first, tho Commender of who Jrmy or Nevy fook wer prisomers in the front
should oxamine them, moksz e list of the war prisoners and raport them to
tha Impoerisl HecdquariorSe Then the Imperial Headquargers should report
tham to the linister of Jar, 'ito siould show in turn the location and
cepacity of the proper cemp o Laperial Ilecadquarterss The Imperial Head-
quarters chould arren;e for Lau grcasport of the war prisoncrs to the camp
indicated by the War Minister. iar prisonors mould be under the cherge ol
the Wor Minister for tho first tics “hen this trensportation was complc tede

In the past wera, the Ministor of er hwed tha ler Prisoners’ Intellige:iice
Bureau end tha Jer Prisoncrs' Camps as the orgens for controlling war

In the Croct Bast Lsis War, however, tha War Priscners! Control
Depertment was nevly orgenized in thz Ministry of Wars The reason why tha
Jar Prisoners' Control Department wcs creuted this time was due to the
following fectst In past wars, namely,; the Russo-Japancse far cnd ‘Jorld
~ar I, the business concerning war prisoners was comparatively simple, &8
the battlefields were limited to either Menchuria or Tsingtao, and tae

prisonerss

number of
Ministry,

scattered over a wide ares -- the saild department

wor prisoners was few; so that the campetent bureaus of the Ter

nothing about the details of 1ts daspatchr

And collateral maevbters &S to war Priaonciity

with the War Prisoners' Intellizence Bureau as the nucleus, wvere

sufficient to transect the business. In the pacific ifar, however, the
business beceme complicated and the battlefield wes wide and prisoners

of unifying the business.

The organizetion of the War Prisoners' Intelligence Bureau and the ler

Priasoners'

Cemp Ordinence were promulgated by Imperial orders toverd the

end of Descember of 1941. But the Tear Prisoners' Control Depertment es

-1l -

@0 oreated for the sake
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eastablished by the order of the War Minister toward the end of March 1942,
These regulations, were drawn up st the Militery Affeirs Bureau to which
T was then attached. Howaver, the erder of establishing the War Prisonerc
Control Department was issued durieg my absence from duty, ewing to my
journey by order %o the southern area, 1 was informed of it later.

I sorved as the Directer of the Military Affeirs Bureau until April of
1942, when any plen for taking in war prisoners Was not yet laid. '3
It was beesause there wWas no suthentie report from the Imperial Head-
quarteres; the questions whether it was right to transport the war [riseners
taken in the southern tropics to the north in a cold season, whether there
were any places and buildings suitable for the war prisoners' camps, etCe
being under investigation. So it was not yet decided on gt thoet timee

The Shanghaei end Zenzuji Camps were urgently set up, as the war prisoncrs
taken by the navy forces were trensported by boatse

As for the war prissners' labour, no s tudy haed been made at all at that
times I have no recocllectien that I ever hed any protest regarding the
treatment of POW from any fereign sountries during my tenure a3 directore.

As to some exhibits. =—-

(1) Exhibit No., 2246 states that there wore axplenations of the inter=
national situatien at the informal meetinz of the war councillors on
July 1, 1941. But I was absent frem that meeting, because 1 Wwas
gick in bed.

(2) I have never read the report of investigation made by the Provost
Marshal concerning the eirmen who had mede an air reid on Japan on
May 23, 1942, which 18 steted in Exhibit No. 2245« I was thaen no
longer the Chief of the Bureau of Militery Affeirs, and, because I
was not in Tokyo, it weas not possible for mo te read that reporte

(3) Exhibit No. 224, 7: I was in Sumatra at the time -&hen the cercmony of
evarding decorations was held in the German Embassy on Ostober
1942, 4nd I have never hed deecorations {rom tha GCerman Ambassadore

(4) Exhibit Noe. h76 includes a secret diarv of the Imperial Headquarters
concerninz the incident of Singepore from February to March in 1942«
But T have never secn sush a documcent. AS 8 matter of feet, an
attendant 'of the Minister of War was not given @& saat in the Imperial
Headquarterse. And also the secret diary of the Imperial Hgadquariers

7es not to be seen by en attendent of the liinister of Wars.

Regerding the treatment ol war ceptives in China, the prosecutar pro-
dused my interrogation (Exhe Noe 255 ) as evidences The contents of thai
document were true. In October 1937, when I took charge &S Director of
the Militery Affairs Bureeu, it was already two yeers and three months
after the outbreak ef hostilities between Jepen and Chinde puring this
period the captives in China wore not treated as prisoners of Wars and
were therefore treated in & special waye. Even the War Prisoners'
Intelligence Bureau wes not in existonceas The Chinese operated on the
seme basis or theory as the Jepaness did in regard to captives. Even
after that time the Japanese Government never declared war, nor did sae
deeclere the existence of hostilities; hence, the treatment of war captives
wes carried on as it had been beforo. Accordingly the war c¢eaptives =ere
never within the jurisdiction of the Wwer Minister, and henco the Director
of the Militery Affairs Bureau hed nothing to do with them. Further, I
was never ordered to make a study of this matter by my superior officexse
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T was ordered by the Mar Minister to go to the Southern Area of operatiope
to observe the state of affairs there,sebeduled for three weeks from abo!
March 20, 1942, I made a tour of Formosa, Saigon, Bangkok, Rangoon, -
Singapore, Palemban, Java, Manila, etc, to learn of the conditions.
returned to Tokyo on April 12, Yhen I arrived at thre Tar Ministry about
noon, Director of the Personnel Bureau TOMINAGA to!r me thet there was
the decision that T was transferred to be the Commarier of the Imperial
Cuard Division stationed at Sumatra,

I was actually appointed the Commander of the Imperial Guard Division on
April 20 and to the date of my departure in preparing for the departure,
and T did no work as “irector of the Military Affairs Bureau. I arrived at
Modzn on May 11 and placed the division under my command. In my 30 years
life as a soldier, it was the first time thnt 1 ever had a responsible
post with a certain decisive power, rhereas the period ended when T was
dispensed mith from the duty of division commander in 1944.

My duty in Sumatra was to take charge of the defence of Northern Sumatra
in accordance with the order from the 25th Army Commander. I took command
of the Imperial Guard Division, of vhich one infantry regiment among
thiei had ocen detached in Malaya as under the direct command of the 25th
Army Commander,

As repards the mpilitary adﬂinistration in this district, the organ under
the direct control of the “ommander, stationed at every provinece of
Sum-t>+. was in charge of it, Between the military administration and
the ¢ i nee =~ which was my duty =- a clear line was dravn,.

Secondly, as for the control of war prisoners and internees, the control
mar prisoners had been, ~hen I arrived there, handed over to the Commande r
and was under the charge of the officer despatched by the Commonder, The
ordinary cnemy aliens were interned by the military canmirigtration organs.
It vas, accordingly, no part of my duty to superintend the affairs con-
cerning var oriscners and internees, The goowing activity of the British
forccs on the Indian Ocean reduced my area of defence into Patanori
Province, East Const Province and Achic Province in the northern end of
Sumatre after April 1943, and afterwards into Achie Province and East
Coast Province from the beginning of 1944.

vhile I was in office in Sumatra, therc were no hostilitics and, accordingly
no war prisoners taken,

1 never employed war prisoners for labour. ¥ithin my area of defence,
hovever. Uheie Tere many forces beyond my command, such ns ailr units, oil-
d:il%inr corps, shipping corps, supply corps under direct control of the
25th Army Commander, naval ferces, ete, C>rtain corps ameng them were
employing var nrisoners for labour,

It was not my duty to defend the camps of either wer prisoners or interncer
My duty was general defence of Northern Sumatra, without including special
defence, namoly immediate guard of the war orisoners' campns and many suppl;
warehouses,ctc.

As for troubles with native inhibitants, though I received reports irom
regimental chiefs on punishment of my subordinate soldiers, all of these
related to the cases inside my army. I remember, as an only case having
anything to do with native inhabitants, therc was a love affair between

a coertain first-grade private and a native girl. After my arrival at my
post, I ordered everyone, including myself, attached to the Imperial Guard
Division, to nrut a mark, red cherry-blossoge on a vhite patch, on the left
breast, so even native inhabitants could recogmize at a glanee anyone of

L | A
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the Imperial Guard Divisiones Thay called us the "Cherry Corps®". Even with
such identification, I heard of no eocmplaint neither from the military
administration erganization part nor from the native inhabitants about

my divisione

Having been appointed the Chieff of the Staff of the l4th Area Ayxmy, I
left Medan for the Philippine Islands on QOctober 12, 194). ’

35« I errived at Port McKinley in the suburbs of Menila City as the Chief of
the Staff of the l4th Area Army on the night of October 20, 194).

»8 regards the general condition of the Philippine Islands at that time,
the U. S. Army landed at Leyte Island on October 18, before General
YAMASHITL, who had arrived there only early in October, became well ac-
quainted with the state of the islands. The 16th Division defending the
island seemed to have been routed at & stroke, and reported nothing about
the situation; and the whole Philippine Islands, espceially, Luzon Island,
with hardly eny fortifieations, were plunged into & chaos. The aellezed
atrocities during my time in the Philippine Islands occurred in the
chaotic war situation.

General Y.lULSHITL's duty was to take cherge of the defunce of the Philipp:
Islends in accordance with the camand of Fisld Marshal TERAUCHI, the
Commander ir Thief of the Sov*thern Ganoral Army; for that purpose, ox-
pecting the U. S5:; J4rmy possibly to invade the Southern Philippines, to mak.
preparations for decisive battlea, br the t, with the naval and air
forces; and, in Luzon Islend, with the ﬁlmas; end to cooperateo
with the eir end naval forces in the Ph¥lippine Islands in carrying out

operations. Field Marshal TERAUCHI was then at Manila amd leter ramoved
to Baigon, on November 17, 194).

The e bove duty of General Y.lLSHITA was suddenly altered. It was due to
tha order f rom the Southern General .rmy Headquarters ziven about October
12 or 13 which seid, *The 1l4th Jrea Army shall destroy the enemy iaveding
Leyte Island with the maximum strength of the Army {orces, in cooperation
with the navel and air forcas.," Up fo thet time, the operation plean was
thet, in case the U. S. army should invade the Southern Philippines, only
the 35th Army stationed in its vieinity would participate in the decisive
bettles to be fought by the naval and air forces. Therefore, as nothingz
had been prepered f or trensporting the army forces from Luzon Islsnd, we
hastily set to arrengements of ships, escort by the eir and naval forces,
picking out the necessary force from the garriaan in Luzon Island end
provisions of munitions and food, 4n order to observe the above comad.
Nevertheless, e fter the air and navel forcas were frustrated in the decisive
bettles about October 2), or 25, the comumend of the eir and sca of the
Southern Philippines fell to the enemy's hands. XS & result, though more
than 50,000 men in all were sent sbout seven times up tec esrly in December,
most of their ships were sunk except the transport ships of the lst
Division. Thus, sarly in December, General YAil&iSHIT4 could only ackmowled -+
the fact that, for all his best efforts, he had completely failed in the
decisive battle in Leytes

4S8 for the Luzon campeizn, alterations were also mede as to General
YAMLSHITA's duty. The Leyte operations, having called for forces from
Luzon, emptied Luzon Island of itas defence and completely spoiled the
defence plan. Reinforcements of three divisions were s ent from Japan, but
one~half or one-third of their force was lost, being torpedoed or air-
raided by the U. S. forces and barely the remnents arrived at Northern
Luzon. In addition, they had no maneuvering power owing to their loss of
automobiles, horses, etcs Such being the case, the Commander in Chief

of the Southern General ariyy ordered General YAMUSHIT. to evade decisive
battles and to assume the defensive persistently.

o
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Thereupon, General YAMASHITA decided on tho policy of evading decisive
battles with the Predominant U, S. forces in the plain, to restrict the
enemy to Luzon &s long as possible, taking advantaege of mountainous
regions and to delay the enemy's attack sgeinst Japan proper. For that
purpose, the General toek the following steps:

4+ To establish three mein positions in the mountainous region east of
Menila, in the mountains west of Clerk Field end in the mountainous
region in the vieinity of Baguio and Palctepas;

B. As to Manils City, to disable the harbour facilities end, besides,
to carry maximum munitions out of the adty and then open the city and
set it eutside the cettlefield;

Ce To defond againat the landinz U. S. Army, disppsiné,v a unit in the
vicinity of Apari at the noerthern end of Luzon Island;

De To detach one unit to the Batangaes Peninsula te delay the U. S. irmy's
rush toward the Masnila district.,

It wvas just after the U, S. foree landed @t Sen Jose in Mindoro Island

on December 15 that this plan was shown.

Tha U, S. 6th army under the coammand of General KRUGER finelly landed ot
the Bay of Lingaysn on January 9, 1945, follewed by the Bth Army under
the command of General EICHEILBFERGER which landed on the southwestern part
o' Luzon Island, »t that time, tha Jepanese Army hed not yet completed
their disposition. T could not but almire the U, S. Army, the encmy =
they were, for their eperations, since they landed on Leyte, in contrast
“7ith our expectation, hz2ir cooperation between the eir, naval and army
forces vyas comple te. Thair army foree, once they lended on Luzon, dis-
Played roelly a great pover of' mansecuvre and fires The Jepasnege forces
found their commang 8ysten instantly destroyed end, at laest, were made to
right independently, teking up their individual positions. I lecried after
the war ended that the Japanese ALrmy in every district fought well to the
last in spite of their infarier eguivment, @specially, of shortage of
provisions. But General YLIULSHITY, was defeated after all,

The communicatien functions of the Japanese Army in the Philippine campaign
a8 exiremely poer. The Suprene Commender in the Southern Philippines vas
Lt. General SUZUKT, Sosaku, the Commandep o the 35th Jrmy, who, after the
Ua S, wrmy landed on Leyte, removed Kia headquarters fom Cebu to Ormoc.
Frowm then on, communications with the Lt, Generzl became of the worst.
iafter the U. S. forees occupled Ormoc early in Docember, communication

woa interrupted, except occasional short despatches via the 100th Division
@t Daveo, Mindanao Islend.

The traffic between YLMESTTTL Y 5 headquarters at Baguic and YOHOY.. MLt s
headquarters easst of HManila was suspended (about January 13) after the

Ue S. Lrmy lendingz at Lingayen on J anuary 9 intercepted the Baguio—Manila
Hﬁﬁd. ‘ .

Wireless was barely available until about May or June, though no telegram
other than really important ones for operations was despatched, owing to
the shortage of vacuum tubes and storege batteries.

interrupted, since the U. S. Army charged into Clark Field about the

niddle of Jenueary, 4s g result, our kuowledge of the state of that district
became utterly uncerteines 4 telephone line was installed to connect our
forces in the vVieinity of the Bay of Lingayen, though it was in a8 cndition

L]
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of being more broken than aveilable, by aerial and land bombardment.
#ith the forces in the vicinity of Paletepas, communication was made by
wireless, which was also inadequate due to breakdown of instruments.

Such frequent breakdowm of instruments as given ebove was due to the

facts that, firstly, the communic ation equipment of our Army was originelly
inferior to that of the U. S. Army beyond comparison, and that, secondly,
many of these instruments had been socaked in the sea, and were constantly
broken. In addition, most persistent bombarding by the Ue. S, forcos
destroyed our instruments one after another. In such circumstances the
commanding organizations of General YJAILISHITA had been destroyeds

General Y.l& SHITa never ordered Manila City tote defended to the last.
48 his Chief of Staff, I was well scquainted with the General's
intention. I was always with him, e xsept the time vhen I went out to
observe the front. Even if any ordor was given, during my absence, I
did not fail to sea it latere I can, therefore, tell for certain that
such an order was in no case given, On the contrary, I once studied
earnestly, by eorder of General Yuld S{ITi, how to make Manila City opeine
Having realized, however, that the matter was beyond the scope of the
General's authority end could not be put in practiece, he was at last
resolved to place Mesnila City outside the battlefield.

It mas largely owing to the following circumstances that, in spite of the
abova, the hostilities and accidents of vieolence to the citizens Dbroke

out practieelly within the city of Mgnila. On January 3, 1945, Genoral
ViILSHITA ordered Lieutenant General YOKOYAM, the Commander of the 8th
Division, to teke command of the forces in the vieinity of Manila and,

in arder to command the operations in the distriet of the Bay of Lingayen,
rzmoved to Baguioes Then, on January 5, the Supreme Commander of thc

nevael forces removed to Baguio, after investing Lieutenent General
YOrOY4dA with the commending power over the naval forces in the vieinity
of llanila concerning their land fighting alonc. Jfter thet, ebout Februery
10, General YuLSHITA, informed of hostilities being continued within the
city, urged Licutenant General YOKOYAM, immediately to withdraw these
forces into the mountains gesat of ifanile. However, Rear Jddmiral IV, BUCHI,
the Supreme Commender of tha forees in the city of Manila, did not observe
this, for ressons which I do not knowe J4nd they were annihilated at lestie.
I learned from the investigation made after the war came to an end that,
when the U. S« forces had invaded Menila City about February i or 5,
approximately 1,800 men of the army foroe had remained there under the
command of Rear jdmiral IW.BICIII gnd the naval forece had cmounted to some
20,000 stronze.

There were many guerrilla forces in the Philippine Islends. J4ifter the
termination of war, it was made public thet the number of formel guerrill:
rgported to the Philippine Government wes some 500,000. It is, however,
unimown how many guerrilla besides the above either temporarily or con-
tinuously cooperatcd with them. They were so many thet every native in-
habitant scemed to be a guerrilla after the U. S. 4rmy's landinge Gonoral
Y lLSHIT4, about Novamber 194, ordered his men to attack armed juerrilles
in view of increased guerrilla activity. Nevertheless, he by no means
ordered any member of guerrilla or any collaborator to be sentenced to
death without a trial. We, the staff, including Generel Y.JL.SHITL, viere
utterly ignorant at that time of the news that, about February or March
of 1945, somc inhebitants were murdered (in Batangas district). Gencral
TAMLSIITA received no report on it. Neither did General YAMASHITA recoive
any report about’ the atrocities alleged to have been comitted in other
parts of the Philippine Islands. A sole case was that, early in April,
1945, Tokyo ordered us to investigate into the actugl state of affairs of

violence against some Spanish club which took plase in February in ihe
city of Maniles General YAUASHITA orgemed Lioutenant Genarel YQEOY.LLL to

=19~
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ﬁnvostigate into it, which was not successful, ewing to the total des-
tvuction of the Japanese forees in Manila City alreedy towvard the end of

ﬁ"‘. LY
F‘-.'r Jl‘tldr,f 0

The war prisoners and internees in the Philippine Islands were under GhLz
control of Gencrel YasSilTh vhon I arrived at my post there (October 20,
1944 )e Practicaelly.speaking, however, the Chief of the War Prisoners!
Cemp at Manile City was cealing with them under -the command of the
ASsistant Coumissary General, No significent alteration was made, oven
after T arrived at my post, on the reguletions about the treatment of war
prisonsrs. |

The ration of food, after being inquired into by the Chief of the Pay-
master's Department, the Assistant Commissary General, &c,, was decided ta

" be varied according to the food condition in general, similar to that for

the Jepanzse troops. The ration was succassively decreased in Luzons I
heve now no cxact recollection of its details, but in fact the ration of
rice was reduced from 00 grams to 300 grems toward the middle of
Novambers |

The peason was that tho Philippine Islends, though originally an
a:ricultural country, had been importingz rice from French Indo-China end
Siam even in ordinary times, end thet, although the foodstuf'fs for the
Japenese Jormy were ontirely transported fmm Fronch Indo~Chine end Siam
tons, the inportation became difficult since the U. S. submarines suspended
the traffic on the China Sea. Fortunatuely 10,0C0 tons rice cemdc aarly

in Novembar, one-third of wh.sh was,; hovever, decided to be put to '
immedinte use for the Leyte operations. Towards sarly Decembor, the
reserved rice in tho Supply Depot wes released. The errivals af'tor
December were less than 1,800 tonse

To cope with suech food condition, we set to purchesing rice in the Central
Philippines in cooperation with the Philippinao Government. One of tha
reasons that Cenerel YillsS{TTJ disposed our main force To Northern Luzon
was thet the Kagajen Valley had ovarprcduced rice. However, only a part
af this plen was put into practice, vhen the Us S. 4Ty landed on the
Pailippines. In consequence, we could not use the rice accumulated with
such effort, '

The procedurs of transporting war prisonsrs to Japan was to begin with
the receipt of order by the Commandor, tha controller of war prisoners,
from the War Minister to the aifccs thst sueh end sich number of war
prisoners should be sent te surh and guch plaece., The ships to t ransport
them should be appointed by the CL . of the General Staff and be notifiec
to the Shipping Commarders Then tne Commander should maka preparations
for transportaetion of wmr prisoncrs and mwcc Them talka the appeinted ship.
They were out of the conirol of the Cormuander atver they were made to go
on boerd the ships in this way, I was infovmed, for the first time, of
the fact that the CRYOXL Mi2U transportel tham in December 1944, whon she
mes sir-raided and tooi refuge in Orepasno sioub December 15« Lot me ox-
plain why, until then, 1, &8 the Chicl of 2taff. did not know aboutb ite
The said order for trensporting the war prisoners had been issued prior
to my arpival, and I heard that they were mcde To gather ot IManila from
the camps including that of Cabana®uan and the, preparations werc mades 43

the ships were eppointed edout December 12 or 13, the Assistent Commissary

General and the Chiaf of the War Prisoncers' Cemp let them take ships in
aceordance with the order already raeceived. So that it did not come toO
my knowledze. On being informed of the ORVOKU MRU's asccident, Gencral
ViLSHITA ardercd the Chief of the War Prisoners' Camp to rescue them as
promptly as possible. I, on.my paert also, cocopereted with tho Chief of the
War Prisoners' Cemp, by order of General Y/ILSHIT., as to the arran;ements
for cars and trains, the transpertation of food, ctc. &8 at that time the
Us S. Jirmy landed on lfidoro Island noar Manila, the General was very busSyes
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But he did his best in spite of thate

In leyving the plan for Luzon operations, consideration was given to the
queshion of how to deal with wer prisoners. 4s a result, General YAlLSIITA
derided on liberating the war priscners and internees with g list of

them through the state representing the rights and interests of Japan in
case the U, S. 4rmy should land on Luzan Island, and reported to the
Comnander in Chief of the Southern General Jrmy ‘to that effect. On the
other hand, the Commander in Chief of the Southern General .Lrmy gtve an
gdviee to him thet it was too early yet to do so. However, the regule tion
pru‘vioualy instructed by the Commender said, "War prisoners may be releascd
in cese the war situation should really necessitate it." It was, howaever,
sonsidered to be practicaslly impossible to remove war prisoners and
internees into the heart of mountains in the then circunmstances in Luzon.
Therefore, Generel YAIASHITA, judzing the circumstances to be really un-
avideble, deeided to put it into practice and, about the middle of
Decamber, ordered the Chiaf of the Wer Prisoners' Cemp to that affecte Th
the shief immedietely gathered the internees of the Baguio and Port Iellinlc
Cemps, and made preparations for releesing them, accumulating food reserve
for e month,

It wes for the first time that I learned, after the war was over, thot

the Chief of the War Prisoners' Cemp, having been mistaoken that the abeve-
mentioned stete representing the rights end interest meent the state which
represents U.S.d«, namely, Switzerland, whose agency as absent ot that
time from Menile, hed dealt with the matber not through the medium of the
reprosenting state but that, as to other matters, he had teken such
necessary steps as vere possible for releasing them without causing
hostilities.

We desired, for the sske of obtaining informction of the enemy, to taxe

war prisoners during hostilities. In the defensive fighting, however,-it
w7as too diffieult to take wer prisoners at ell. Only ona case wasS the
cepturs of o flight efficer in JAugust, 1544, but General YiM.SHITA, learning
thot the offieer's attitude was so sdmirable, ordered him to be sent back to
th= front of the U« S. Army. Later, Msjor General GUILL, the Commanier of
the Us. S. 32nd Division, informed us of his safe returne

In accordence with the Imperial Hoedquarters' cemmand, I surrendered myself,
tozether with General YAILSHITAL, on September 3, 1945.

General YMASITT4 at no time released commend of the Jirmy on account of
illness or any other reason., Neither was he av r ¢ haent, during the

Pnilippine operaticrs, from duty on an o ~i:ic. w7I0 o3 Jemen or the
Southern General 4riy zandguartera, I ~uo o7 §d Tk = Zeneral and hec
any report with him, 5S¢ s2o0 times I woad i) A viinted wivh Genaral
YiMaSHITG's jatentionss e mevar 38 el ord -2 L oarh 200 ticnal lavs
nor erders against hwaanals. o 2790 20T panninian A acanival at the

misconduct of his suhori-inaTes Thar 1.2 BEra2d 21 LWills Uréor Saagsce dirficult
conditions, General Y-liiGITUl4 Tock ell possidle pi-Ccaut ions to prevent

atrociticzse.

I attended as a witness the trisl of General YAULSHTTie 48 for myself, 1
was often examined as & wa- ¢ ~iminel suspect. Tewards the end of ldarch 1946,
however, I leearned from Ceotain CoRTER, the Cniel . f the camp, that I was
"clear" of the crime, I wes told to the same cf?act tv a certein liecutenant,
a member of the War Crimes Invastigation Comritt 2Ce '
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HiRa, Sniii (szsl)

SLTZT. (=<%iro (scal)
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Ta accordance with my eonscience I swear to tell the gj-..i

whole truth withholding nothing end adding nothinge i
' A%

| /s/ Akira Muto ‘(scal) | |
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22 May 1947

MEMORANDIM FOR:/ My. Edward P. Honaghan, Chief
Investigative Division

FROM Mr. Pedro Im.
SUBJEQT + Defendant MUTO, Akira

i In his memorandum %o Mr. Sutton of 8 May 1947, Mr. Henry A.
Dolan, Jr., stated that Defendant MJTO's membership in the "Sakura Xai"
mmumwdmummtmmwum "Sakura Kai®
roster dated 11 July 1935.

3. Request shat Mr. Dolan undertake $o elarify this apparent contra-
dietion. Would greatly appreciate it 1f more evidence oould be dug up against

FETRO LOFEZ
Assosiate Prosecusor
for the Failippines

66 - Mr. D. N. Sutton \¢"




the Cause of
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467 | August 193,
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Moo to lopez, Subject: Reescanning of MUTO, Akira Documents not
Introduced in Zvidenoce dtd 15Vayh7

2000 1100

1723

1725

1728
1733

1768

1792
1815
1922

2174

2271
<27e
253

2533

Gommank

Affidavit in Baglish of T.C. Liu regarding Chinese atroocities
of 1541, Defendant involved only as Chief of Military Affairs
m' 19&M2i A

Statement, "A General Aggount of Japanese Poiscn Gas Verfare
{n China ~« 1937 to 1945"., MU involved only sc far as
poaitions held might be significant. :

Nanking atrocities. Affidavit in English,

Nanking etroeities. Analysis complete. No mention of
MUTO personally.

KIDO Nemoirs, 1931-1945, No significant mention of MU0,
Akira, Complete translation in folder,

Statement of Nmking atrocities.
Nanking atrocities, Analysis adequate.

Book ® Through Japanese Hyes" by Otto D, Tolischus., All
defendants (including MUT0) quoted in specches on war aims,

ete. See Supp Analysis.

Statement hy TANAKA, Ryukichi translated into English re
authorized powers of Bureau of Military Affairs and its
activities, 1940-42, Defendant involved as Chief of Military
AMfalirs Bureau, 1939«1942,

letter to Lee M, KERNA from INOUYE, Akira, aliass NISSHO,
Defendant mentioned as strongly protesting plans for Roosevelt-
KONOYE meeting. Full trenslation of let’‘er in Document File,
Interrogation of YUTO, Akirs, Original in Znglish,
Interrogation of YUTO, Akira, Origineal in English,

Newspaper artiele from 10 Jume 1941 TOKYO NICHI NICHI on
meeting of authorities of Foreign Ministry, Var Ministry,

Navy Ministry, Planning Board, eto. regarding adoption of

strong attitude toward NEI at Ba¥e¥ia parleys. MNo significant

: :_lngion of MUTO,

Extrascts from newspeper (Eng lang) of address delivered by
70J0, No mention of WTO, Adequate analysis,




Hemo 10 lopez, Sudbject: Reesoanning of MUTO, Akira Documents not
atroduced in Rvidence dtd 15¥aylh7

Doge No» _ Coxpant

E5%«A Antlysis does not mention MUTO, Newspaper file from which
extract is taken is miseing,

2538 Extract from newspaper (Mg lang)., Adequate enalysis.

<390 Dofendant mentioned in interrogation of OKA, Takazumi
(30 vareh 1946). Original in ™glish,

<891 Dafendeant mentioned in interrogation of T000, Shigenori,
(13 Mareh 1946). Original in English.

289z Defendant mentioned in interrogation of 7000 (11 Mareh 1946),
Original in Znglish,

<893 Pefendant mentioned in interrogation of 7000 (26 March 1946).
Orlglnll in Taglish,

2894 Defendant mentioned in interrogation of 70G0 (22 and 28 Feb 1946).
Original in English,

2097 Defendant mentioned in interrogation of 7000 (30 Hareh 1946).
OCriginal in English,

<598 Uefendant mentioned in interrogation of YA TSUOKA, Yosuke,
re drafting of document for close rslations with GCermany,
Original in @aglish,

293 Brief list of avards and decorations received by twenty-five
Class "A" Defendants, ineluding UM,

< 954 ‘ntrodustory Statemont of Col Woolworth., Defendant included
in list relating ell defendants to Class "B" and "0" Vay
Crines, .

2940 Affidavit of TANAKA, Ryukichi., Veult (Files Unit) unable to
locate original, Anslysis incomplete.

5o te

11453 Report re procedures to be followed in treatment of foreign
residents and their interests in Inner Mongolia, Analyses
adequate, Defemdant W70, Akira, i{mplicated to extent that
his seal appears on documen t,

et lopez (2)

Jutton
Files

e He VAGNER
“ Je (per E47T. Garden) Scanning Unit




29 January 1947

Memo to: Mr. Carlisle Higgins

From : 'Yale Maxon

Contention by MUTO, SATO eand OKA in their motions for

Subject:
dismissal that they were, in effect, mere gsecretaries.

the above cleim is contained in Kido

1. Counter evidence to
of which is attached.

Diary entry for 1l August 1941, a rechecked copy
This hes never been offered in evidence.

2. Though it is arguable that the Emperor wished to exclude
portance, it is equally arguable

these individuals because of their non-im
and much more probable that the Emperor wished the vital question of
yvar or peace to be discussed and decided at a safe distance from the

fanatical exponents of expansion at any price. Why elee could he not
ask questions until he fully understood?

3, Perhaps it may be desired to introduce this evidence at a
later stage in the trial when Kido is on the stand. |

Yale Maxon

Coples to!
Capt. Robinson

Mr. Comyns-Carr
Mr. Mornane
Mr. Horwitz




Avsusgt 1llth, Monday, fine.

At 9:50 a.m., exchanged bethrothal presents for the marriage-
engagement of Takagumi and Nobuko. All the members of White Chrysanthemum
Club ceme for congratulations.

At 10:30 went to the office.

From 10:40 until 11:40 was received in audience. Being very much
worried over recent relations between Japen and the United States, the
Imperor spoke to me to the following effect:

"If the conference with the President which the Premier reported
to the Emperor the other day should be successful there will be nothing
to worry about. Butl in case the United States does not accept Japen's
proposals in a simple and straightforward manner, I think we must make a
very serious decision.

"Previous Imperial Councils have been extremely formal, but this
time I want to ask questions until I fully understand. So I suggest that
it be made up for the most part of the following people and that admini-
strative personnel such as the Chiefs of the Military Affairs Bureaus be
not included: the Prime Minister, the Foreign Minister, the Finance
Minister, the Minigsters of the Army and the Navy, the President of the
Planning Board, the Chiefs of the Army General Staff, and the Chief of the
Navy General Staff. We had better add the three Gengui /Field-Marshals or
Fleet Admirals/.

"Please talk over these points with the Premier too."

The above was what I was told.

At 3 p.m. Marchioness Komatsu came to see me with Nobuko and I had




g telk with them.

Invited Mre. Hiromichi for sup

per and we dined together,

TELELNEERRLIR Mgl ndusrliing i 4




TRLOT FRGA ITDO'S DAY REGRDING. -

LUTO, Jiira (GIIER.L).

26t Octobur, 1931*.

| Thore vas I.YOK.I at Zazoku nilan at six ofclock. We invited KOISO
of the Burceu oi the [ilitary -.ffairs and i .arda ol tae Manchurian and
lion;olian prouvlcns an’ thc nationel dctonse provlcile

.t cight ofcloc.:, I -ont to U&LiL., ana had éiansr with HReDeey Tadid

and. SHIRLTRI ana digcusscd tho culrenw 21 fairs., The oucstion of the c¢laer
~statesnan coanin: to To.Jro ’s Giscusscs Thc opinion ol tho Forcizn Office
7as in opposition to Tac cucation, becausc it apocarcd as taous: tihic cabinct
used tiis mattcr to prevent fran bein; influencea or run Ly thc Ty

OTSUL. calc to see me at ten tairty. -9 said that the policy
touart thc Iy ;_1_'0.01(..:;.1 had uoet }r\'_,t vcen docidea, apd tacroe wer'c g o)) BT clamocnts

in thc group nonely Goacral .I’TC ené the Division CalionGers. If it ero truldy
it vould be a pleasant maticr for our cowitr; s Prestige ant inviolability

of tic law must be o,




